
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF HIGHLAND 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Record of the July 5, 2006 Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Susan Bennett, Dave Blossey; Susan Happel; Paul Mecklenborg, 
Scott Oppmann, Gail Perrin, Patricia Pilchowski (Township Supervisor) Keith Rhodes 
(Chairperson) and Roscoe Smith 
 
Members Absent:  Sharon Greene, Neil Kajy, and Doreen Kosieracki 
 
Staff Present: Jill Bahm (HDDA Director)  
 
Visitors Present:  Larry Shew, George Hayden, Paul Young   
 
Chairperson Rhodes called the meeting to order at 5:37 p.m. 
 
Approve Meeting Minutes of June 7, 2006  
 
Motion by Happel to approve the Minutes of June 7, 2006 as amended.  Supported 
by Pilchowski and Motion carried (9-0). 
 
Treasurer’s report 
 
Mr. Blossey reported the account balance was $165,543.22, which is invested in a CD 
that rolls over every 30 days.  He also reported that TIF funds of $8,500.00 are expected 
by the end of the year. 
 
Motion by Oppmann to approve the Treasurer’s report.  Supported by Happel and 
the motion carried (9-0). 
 
Director’s report 
 
Ms. Bahm reviewed her monthly report with the Board.  She discussed the MSOC 
meeting that took place on June 13th and 14th and informed the Board that the MSOC 
Resource Team will be returning for a study between October 3, 2006 and October 6, 
2006.  She also noted that Mr. Bob Donahue will be assisting the committees with work 
planning sessions on August 7th and 8th. 
 
Ms. Bahm reported that the first concert on June 15th had a nice turnout with attendance 
of approximately 100 people.  She reviewed the upcoming concerts as being July 12, 
2006 and August 9, 2006.  She noted that Mr. Shew will be on the Planning Commission 
Agenda on July 6, 2006 and stated there are questions regarding Milford Road. 
Ms. Bahm reviewed the Long Range Planning meeting that took place on June 6, 2006.  
She asked the Board to review the record she had prepared based on the information 
compiled from the flip charts and discussions.  She also stated that Jackie Binkert, our 
facilitator was so impressed with the efforts from the Board that she lowered her fee to 
$1500.  



 

HDDA Minutes – Regular Meeting July 5, 2006 Page 2 

 
Mr. Rhodes thanked the Board for their effort and participation and asked the committee 
leaders to track their group’s time and provide it on a monthly basis to Ms. Bahm for 
database entry. 
 
Mr. Rhodes also referenced to the “Guiding Principles” that were created during the Long 
Range Planning Meeting.  He asked that these principals be used for future reference.  
 
The newsletter was also discussed and Ms. Bahm asked the committee chairs to provide 
input for the quarterly newsletter.  Ms. Happel requested a hard copy of the final 
newsletter so that she may share it with others. 
 
Ms. Happel made a motion to approve the Director’s Report.  Mr. Oppmann 
supported and the motion carried (9-0) 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Town Center Boulevard Update 
 
Mr. Rhodes reported work is in process at this time. 
 
Sewer Update 
 
It was reported that HRC proposed a Sewer Plan and at this time costs and an 
engineering study are being researched. 
 
Ms. Pilchowski reported that a financial advisor will be meeting with the entire Township 
Board and stakeholders on July 6, 2006 to discuss the sewer investment.  She noted that 
some  of the stakeholders have concerns and it is very important that the information is 
shared with all involved at one time.  She also noted it is important that proper steps are 
taken regarding the investments of the residents and business owners of Highland.  She 
stated that it is critical that only the amount of money needed for the sewers will be 
collected through the SAD, and that a sewer system be self-funding, not a revenue 
generator for other Township expenses. 
 
Mr. Mecklenborg stated he is aware of a business owner who owns acreage who may 
have to spend three quarters of a million dollars for the sewer, according to the current 
estimate of costs for the system. He expressed concern that future costs of connection 
may skyrocket; that uncertainty makes property owners wary of the project. 
 
It was also noted that there is a petition with 60% in favor of a SAD; however, a petition of 
20% of property owners against such a SAD could slow the process.   
 



 

HDDA Minutes – Regular Meeting July 5, 2006 Page 3 

 
Milford Road Update 
 
Ms. Bahm reported she presented the Milford Road Plan to the Planning Commission and 
there was general consensus other than on the bike lanes. 
 
The following are bullet points of discussion: 
 

�  Mr. Oppmann asked if bikes and cars could share travel lanes as he feels those 
who ride their bikes into town will walk their bikes around town rather than ride 
through 

 
�  It was suggested that only one bike lane be put in rather than one lane on each 

side of the road.  Ms. Bahm stated bike traffic has to travel in the same direction as 
vehicle traffic 

 
�  Mr. Smith noted the Planning Commission discussed that sidewalks to be placed 

on John Street for cyclists would be safer 
 

�  Mr. Smith stated concerns of the sidewalk being only 5 ft and felt they should be 
wider. Ms. Bahm stated that the business owner could provide wider sidewalks in 
their foot print but the 5 ft. was required because a 10 ft. sidewalk would be 
overwhelming for a residential property 

 
�  Utility easements were discussed and it was suggested that the utility easement 

remain private property and not be part of the road right-of-way; that stems future 
road widening 

 
�  It was also discussed that utilities could run under the sidewalks 

 
�  There was a consensus from the Board that on-street parking was a must 

 
�  There was a consensus from the Board that curb and gutter be used 

 
�  Ms. Perrin and Mr. Oppmann were in favor of moving the bike path from Milford 

Road and placing it on John Street 
 

�  Ms. Bahm stated she would like to see the bike paths stay because she felt it 
represents recreation and a healthy lifestyle 

 
Ms. Pilchowski stated that it is very important that HDDA, Township Board, and the 
Planning Commission band together if 66 ft. Road fight-of-ways are wanted.   
 
Ms. Bahm stated the Road Commission has said that they want to work with the 
community and will not do anything that the Township does not want. 
 
 



 

HDDA Minutes – Regular Meeting July 5, 2006 Page 4 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
 
Design 
It was reported that Design is working on a draft sign ordinance and design guidelines. 
The building survey is still ongoing and should be completed before the guidelines are 
finalized.  It was also stated that a uniform construction sign is being studied to represent 
new projects in the Highland Station Area. 
 
Promotions 
Ms. Happel reported that the first outdoor concert had a good turnout.  She stated that she 
needs volunteers and asked that they meet at the Highland Station House at 4:30 on 
Wednesday July 12th.  She also stated she needs help with clean-up around 9 p.m.   
 
Ms. Happel reviewed upcoming social events, including the square dance September 30. 
 
Economic Restructuring 
The ER committee had nothing new to report; the committee is 2-3 people and currently 
Mr. Blossey is the acting chair. Given his commitment as the Secretary/Treasurer, he 
would like to see someone step up and take over this committee chairmanship, but will 
continue until the committee grows with a few more people. 
 
Organization 
Mr. Oppmann reported that the Org committee has reviewed the draft vision statement 
prepared by Ms. Bahm. It will be emailed out to the board members within the next week 
for their review and comment. The vision statement may be adopted next month. They are 
also working on a volunteer database. 
 
Development District Reviews (none) 
 
Log Cabin Acquisition 
 
The log cabin was discussed and it was noted that this was a very nice offer and was very 
much appreciated; however, the cabin does not fit into the goals at this time. 
 
COMMUNITY REPORTS (none) 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC (none) 
 
Adjournment:  Motion by Happel seconded by Pilchowski to adjourn the meeting at 
7:30 p.m.  Motion carried 9–0. yes  
 


